
1 
 

 
Agenda for the 11:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 10, 2013 
Regular Meeting of the Oklahoma State Board of Health 

Posted at www.health.ok.gov 
Oklahoma State Department of Health 

1000 N.E. 10th Street – Room 1102 
Oklahoma City, OK 73117-1299 

 
      

I. CALL TO ORDER AND OPENING REMARKS 
 

II. REVIEW OF MINUTES 
a) Approval of Minutes for October 8, 2013, Special Meeting 
b) Approval of Minutes for October 8, 2013, Tri-Board Meeting 
 

III. APPOINTMENTS 
c) Home Care and Hospice Advisory Council (Presented by Henry F. Hartsell, Jr.) 
 Appointments: One Member 

Authority: 63 O.S., § 1-103a.1 
Members: The Advisory Council shall consist of seven (7) members.  Membership is defined in 
statute.  One member, who is a representative of an association which advocates on behalf of home care 
or hospice issues, shall be appointed by the State Board of Health. 

 
d) Advancement of Wellness Advisory Council (Presented by Julie Cox-Kain) 
 Appointments: One Member 

Authority: 63 O.S., § 1-103a.1 
Members: The Advisory Council shall consist of seven (7) members.  Membership is defined in 
statute.  One member, who is the Executive Director of the Tobacco Settlement Endowment, shall be 
appointed by the State Board of Health. 
 

e) Infant and Children’s Health Advisory Council (Presented by Edd Rhoades) 
 Appointments: One Member 

Authority: 63 O.S., § 1-103a.1 
Members: The Advisory Council shall consist of seven (7) members.  Membership is defined in 
statute.  One member, who is a physician licensed by the state of Oklahoma and specializes in the 
diagnosis and treatment of childhood injuries in a trauma setting, shall be appointed by the State Board 
of Health. 

 
IV.      PROPOSED RULEMAKING ACTIONS 

Discussion and possible action on the following:  
 
PROTECTIVE HEALTH SERVICE 
f) CHAPTER 2. PROCEDURES OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH  
 [PERMANENT] [EMERGENCY] Presented by James Joslin 

PROPOSED RULES:  
Subchapter 29. Criminal History Background Checks [NEW] 
310:2-29-1. Purpose [NEW] 
310:2-29-2. [RESERVED] 
310:2-29-3. Implementation [NEW] 
310:2-29-4. [RESERVED] 
310:2-29-5. Appeals [NEW] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health; Title 63 O.S. § 1-104; Title 63 O.S. § 1-1947(T)(2) 
and 1-1947(Y). 
SUMMARY: This proposal promulgates new rules in the procedures of the Department of Health as 
required in amendments to the Long Term Care Security Act (Title 63 O.S. § 1-1944 et. seq.), as 
adopted in 2012, House Bill 2582. This bill authorized fingerprint based criminal history background 
checks on those applicants who would be employed in a variety of long–term care settings as defined 
in the law at Title 63 O.S. Section 1-1945(4). The law at Title 63 O.S. § 1-1947(T)(2) requires that 

http://www.health.ok.gov/


2 
 

the Department shall specify rules for issuing a waiver of the disqualification or employment denial 
and further specifies in paragraph (Y) the State Board of Health shall promulgate rules prescribing 
effective dates and procedures for the implementation of a national criminal history record check for 
the employers and nurse aide scholarship programs defined in Section 1-1945 of Title 63 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes. 
 

g) CHAPTER 100. LICENSURE OF CREMATORIES [REVOKED] 
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by James Joslin 

PROPOSED RULES: Chapter 100. Licensure of Crematories [REVOKED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health; Title 63 O.S. § 1-104; Title 59 O.S. § 396.30. 
SUMMARY: This  proposal  revokes  the  rules  of  the  Board  of  Health  concerning  the  
licensure  of crematories.  The duties and functions concerning licensure of crematories were 
transferred by statutory modification from the Oklahoma State Department of Health to the 
Oklahoma Funeral Board.  The Department's authority for rulemaking was found at Title 63 O.S. 
1981, § 1-331 and renumbered as 59 O.S. § 396.30  by Laws 2003, HB 1270, c. 57, § 31, effective 
April 10, 2003. The Oklahoma Funeral Board has adopted rules for the licensure of crematories 
[see Title 235 – Oklahoma Funeral Board, Chapter 10 – Funeral Services Licensing, Subchapter 14 
– Crematories]. 
 

h) CHAPTER 276. HOME INSPECTION INDUSTRY [REVOKED] 
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by James Joslin 

PROPOSED RULES: Chapter 276. Home Inspection Industry [REVOKED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health, Title 63 O.S. § 1-104; 59 O.S. § 1000.4. 
SUMMARY: This proposal revokes the rules of the Board of Health concerning the home 
inspection industry. Effective November 1, 2008, the authority to "adopt, amend, repeal, and 
promulgate rules as may be necessary to regulate . . . home inspectors" was transferred from the 
Oklahoma State Department of Health to the Construction Industries Board [see  59 O.S., § 
1000.4]. The Construction Industries Board promulgated emergency rules, effective November 11, 
2008, and later  superseded  those  emergency rules  with  permanent  rules,  effective  July 11,  
2009  [see Construction Industries Board rules OAC 158:70 and 158:10-3-5]. 
 

i) CHAPTER 658. INDEPENDENT REVIEW ORGANIZATION CERTIFICATION RULES  
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by James Joslin 

PROPOSED RULES: Chapter 658. Independent Review Organization Certification Rules 
[REVOKED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health, Title 63 O.S. § 1-104; Title 36 O.S. § 6475.1. 
SUMMARY: This proposal revokes the rules of the Board of Health concerning independent review 
organization certification and external review. Effective August 26, 2011, The Uniform Health 
Carrier External Review Act, sections 25 through 41 of House Bill 2072 (2011), transferred 
responsibility for external reviews and approval of independent review organizations to the 
Oklahoma Insurance Department [see Title 36 O.S. § 6475.1 et. seq.]. The Oklahoma Insurance 
Department promulgated emergency rules, effective September 12,, 2011, and later superseded those 
emergency rules with permanent rules, effective July 14, 2012 [see Title 365, Insurance Department, 
Chapter 10, Subchapter 29 - External Review Regulations.] 
 

j) CHAPTER 675. NURSING AND SPECIALIZED FACILITIES 
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by James Joslin 

PROPOSED RULES  
Subchapter 9. Resident Care Services  
310:675-9-9.1. Medication services [AMENDED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health; Title 63 O.S. § 1-104; Title 63 O.S. § 1-1950(C)(1). 
SUMMARY: This proposal amends rules promulgated in accordance with 63 O.S. Section 1-
1950(C)(1) which authorized the State Board of Health to promulgate rules necessary for proper 
control and dispensing of nonprescription drugs in nursing facilities.  Section 310:675-9-9.1(i) 
addresses those procedures for maintaining nonprescription drugs for dispensing from a common or 
bulk supply. This proposed rule amendment deletes the requirement in OAC 310:675-9-9.1(i)(8) 
which limits the bulk nonprescription drugs that nursing facilities may maintain for residents. The 
current requirement provides that only oral analgesics, antacids, and laxatives may be dispensed 
from bulk supplies. This change will allow nursing facilities to maintain bulk supplies of other 
nonprescription drugs, such as cough medicines. 
 

http://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/DeliverDocument.asp?citeid=436002
http://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/DeliverDocument.asp?CiteID=439134
http://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/DeliverDocument.asp?CiteID=439134
http://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/DeliverDocument.asp?CiteID=463219
http://www.oscn.net/applications/oscn/DeliverDocument.asp?CiteID=463219


3 
 

PREVENTION AND PREPAREDNESS SERVICES 
k) CHAPTER 515. COMMUNICABLE DISEASE AND INJURY REPORTING 
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by Toni Frioux 

PROPOSED RULES: Subchapter 1. Disease and Injury Reporting Requirements 
310:515-1-3 Diseases to be reported immediately [AMENDED] 
310:515-1-4 Additional diseases, conditions, and injuries to be reported [AMENDED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health, Title 63 O.S. § 1-104; and Title 63 O.S., §§ 1-502 
and 1-503. 
SUMMARY: The proposal updates the existing rules in accordance with recommendations from 
the Council of State and Territorial Epidemiologists (CSTE), the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, and local health care partners pertaining to reportable diseases.  The  proposal amends  
the  lists  of  reportable  diseases, regarding  diseases  or  conditions  that  are  required  to  be  
reported  to  the  Department.  These  changes minimally increase the reporting burden placed 
upon clinicians, have no impact on the reporting burden placed upon laboratories, and do not 
adversely affect the public health disease control and prevention activities. 

  
l) CHAPTER 550. NEWBORN SCREENING PROGRAM 

[PERMANENT]  Presented by Toni Frioux 
PROPOSED RULES:  
Subchapter 1. General Provisions 
310:550-1-1          [AMENDED] 
310:550-1-2          [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 3. Testing Of Newborns 
310:550-3-1          [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 5. Specimen Collection 
310:550-5-1          [AMENDED] 
310:550-5-2          [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 7. Hospital Recording 
310:550-7-1          [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 13. Parent And Health Care Provider Education 
310:550-13-1        [AMENDED] Subchapter 
17. Follow-Up For Physicians 
310:550-17-1        [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 19. Reporting 
310:550-19-1        [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 21. Information 
310:550-21-1        [AMENDED] 
Appendix A          Instructions For Filter Paper Sample Collection [REVOKED] 
Appendix A          Instructions For Filter Paper Sample Collection [NEW] Appendix B          
Report Form [REVOKED] 
Appendix B          Report Form [NEW] Appendix C          
Refusal Form [REVOKED] Appendix C          
Refusal Form [NEW] 
Appendix D          Recommended Pulse Oximetry Screening Protocol [NEW] 
Appendix E           Pulse Oximetry Result Form [NEW] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health, Title 63 O.S. Section 1-104; and Title 63 O.S. 
Sections 1-534, 1-550.5, and 1-705. 
SUMMARY: This proposal requests amendatory language to the existing rule to include Severe 
Combined Immunodeficiency Syndrome (SCID) as a new test in the core panel of 29 genetic 
disorders for newborn screening (NBS) in Oklahoma, as recommended by the Advisory Committee 
on Heritable Disorders in Newborns and Children – Recommended Uniform Screening Panel 
(January 21, 2010).  This proposal also adds Pulse Oximetry screening for the detection of Critical 
Congenital Heart Disease to existing newborn screening rules as legislated by HB 1347 (2013) [63 
O.S. § 1-550.5]. The new law requires inpatient or ambulatory health care facilities licensed by the 
State Department of Health that provide birthing and newborn care services to perform a pulse 
oximetry screening on every newborn in its care prior to discharge from the birthing facility.  In 
addition, minor changes to the newborn screening report form that is submitted by the infant’s 
specialist or primary care provider to include additional information based on new clinical practice 
and the requisition/collection form to bring the rules up to date with practice.  Additional 



4 
 

documents include a recommended pulse oximetry screening protocol and a pulse oximetry 
screening result form. 

 
m) CHAPTER 667. HOSPITAL STANDARDS  
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by Toni Frioux 

PROPOSED RULES: Subchapter 19. Medical Records Department  
310:667-19-2 [AMENDED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health, Title 63 O.S. Section 1-104; and Title 63 O.S. 
Sections 1- 534, 1-550.5, and 1-705. 
SUMMARY: This proposal requests amendatory language to the existing rule to include Severe 
Combined Immunodeficiency Syndrome (SCID) as a new test in the core panel of 29 genetic 
disorders for newborn screening (NBS) in Oklahoma, as recommended by the Advisory Committee 
on Heritable Disorders in Newborns and Children – Recommended Uniform Screening Panel 
(January 21, 2010).  This proposal also adds Pulse Oximetry screening for the detection of Critical 
Congenital Heart Disease to existing newborn screening rules as legislated by HB 1347 (2013) [63 
O.S. § 1-550.5]. The new law requires inpatient or ambulatory health care facilities licensed by the 
State Department of Health that provide birthing and newborn care services to perform a pulse 
oximetry screening on every newborn in its care prior to discharge from the birthing facility.  In 
addition, minor changes to the newborn screening report form that is submitted by the infant’s 
specialist or primary care provider to include additional information based on new clinical practice 
and the requisition /collection form to bring the rules up to date with practice.  Additional documents 
include a recommended pulse oximetry screening protocol and a pulse oximetry screening result 
form. 

 
COMMUNITY AND FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES  
n) CHAPTER 526. DENTAL SERVICES 
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by Jana Winfree 

PROPOSED RULES: Subchapter 3. Oklahoma Dental Loan Repayment Program 
310:526-3-2 [AMENDED] 
310:526-3-3 [AMENDED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health; Title 63 O.S. Sections 1-103a.1 and 1-104; and 
Title 70 O.S. Section 1210.284. 
SUMMARY:  
310:526-3-2(b) The current Rule sets forth the description and operation of the Oklahoma Dental 
Loan Repayment Program (Program). The proposed action allows flexibility in selecting the number 
and types of participants and in the time period for participation in the Program. The circumstance 
for the Rule change is compelled by legislation, HB 2587, effective November 1, 2012. The intended 
effect is to allow the Advisory Committee and Department to select the appropriate number of 
participants based on funding and the appropriate type of participant (Oklahoma University College 
of Dentistry faculty or non-faculty), and allow the service obligation period to be adjusted. 
310:526-3-2(d) The current Rule states that each award shall be distributed by a two-party draft 
made payable to the dentist and the loan agency. The proposed action states that each award shall be 
distributed in accordance with state law. The circumstance for the Rule change is because state 
preference is to distribute awards by direct deposit and the intended effect is to streamline 
administration of the Program.  310:526-3-3(b)(3) and (e)(5) The current Rule sets forth eligibility 
requirements for participants. The non-faculty participant agrees that Medicaid patients will 
represent 30% of all patient visits at a minimum.  The proposal clarifies the count will be by number 
of patient visits. The rule change takes into consideration that dental software used by participants 
favors this type of reporting and the Department's intent to facilitate this reporting requirement. 
 

o) CHAPTER 531. VISION SCREENING  
 [PERMANENT]  Presented by Ann Benson 

PROPOSED RULES:  
Subchapter 1. General provisions 
310:531-1-2. Authority [AMENDED] 
310:531-1-3. Definitions [AMENDED] 
Subchapter 3. Advisory Committee 
310:531-3-1. Purpose  [REVOKED] 
310:531-3-2. Advisory Committee  [REVOKED] 
310:531-3-3. Rules of Order  [REVOKED] 



5 
 

Subchapter 5. Vision Screening Standards for Children 
310:531-5-2. Oklahoma Vision Screening Standards [AMENDED} 
310:531-5-3. Approval of Vision Screening Providers vision screening providers [AMENDED] 
310:531-5-5. Re-approval of vision screening providers [AMENDED] 
310:531-5-6. Approval of trainers of vision screening providers vision screening trainers 
[AMENDED] 
310:531-5-7. Re-approval of trainers of vision screening providers vision screening trainers 
[AMENDED] 
310:531-5-8. Approval of trainers of vision screening trainers vision screening trainers of trainers 
[AMENDED] 
310:531-5-9. Re-approval of trainers of vision screening trainers vision screening trainers of trainers 
[AMENDED] 
Subchapter 7. Registry Enforcement for Vision Screening 
310:531-7-2. Grounds for discipline [AMENDED] 
310:531-7-3. Complaint investigation  [AMENDED] 
310:531-7-4. Summary removal  [AMENDED] 
310:531-7-5. Appearance before the Advisory Committee [REVOKED] 
310:531-7-6. Right to a hearing 
[AMENDED] Subchapter 9. Sports Eye 
Safety Resource 
310:531-9-1. Purpose  [REVOKED] 
310:531-9-2. Eye safety resource [REVOKED] 
AUTHORITY: Oklahoma State Board of Health; Title 63 O.S. Sections 1-103a.1 and 1-104; and 
Title 70 O.S. Section 1210.284. 
SUMMARY: The proposed rule changes implement provisions of Section 44, House Bill 1467, 
which creates the Infant and Children’s Health Advisory Council, and Section 79, which replaces the 
Vision Screening Advisory Committee established in 70 O.S. 2011, Section 1210.284, with the 
Infant and Children’s Health Advisory Council and eliminates the role of the Advisory Committee in 
carrying out programmatic activities. The proposed rule changes delineate the responsibilities of the 
Department in carrying out statewide vision screening for children. 
 

V. 2014 LEGISLATION 
Mark Newman, Ph.D., Director, Office of State and Federal Policy  
 

VI. CONSIDERATION OF STANDING COMMITTEES’ REPORTS AND ACTION 
 Executive Committee – Dr. Krishna, Chair 
 Discussion and possible action on the following:  

p) Update 
 

 Finance Committee – Dr. Woodson, Chair 
 Discussion and possible action on the following: 

q) Update 
 
 Accountability, Ethics, & Audit Committee – Ms. Wolfe, Chair 
 Discussion and possible action on the following: 

r) 2014 Audit Plan 
s) Update 

 
 Public Health Policy Committee – Dr. Gerard, Chair 
 Discussion and possible action on the following: 

t) Update 
 

VII. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Related discussion and possible action on the following: 
u) Update 

 
 
 



6 
 

VIII. COMMISSIONER’S REPORT 
Discussion and possible action 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS  
Not reasonably anticipated 24 hours in advance of meeting. 
 

X. PROPOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Proposed Executive Session pursuant to 25 O.S. Section 307(B)(4) for confidential communications 
to discuss pending department litigation, investigation, claim, or action; pursuant to 25 O.S. Section 
307(B)(1) to discuss the employment, hiring, appointment, promotion, demotion, disciplining or 
resignation of any individual salaried public officer or employee and pursuant to 25 O.S. Section 307 
(B)(7) for discussing any matter where disclosure of information would violate confidentiality 
requirements of state or federal law. 

• Annual performance evaluation for the Office of Accountability Systems Director & Internal 
Audit Unit Director, and Board of Health Secretary 

• Discussion of potential or anticipated investigation or litigation concerning long term care 
issues. 

 
Possible action taken as a result of Executive Session. 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT 
OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 

1 

 

STATE BOARD OF HEALTH 1 

Northeast Regional Health and Wellness Campus 2 

2600 NE 63rd Street, Board Room 108 3 

Oklahoma City, OK 73111 4 

 5 

Tuesday, October 8, 2013 11:30 a.m. 6 

 7 

R. Murali Krishna, President of the Oklahoma State Board of Health, called the 383
rd

 special meeting of the 8 

Oklahoma State Board of Health to order on Tuesday, October 8, 2013 at 11:36 a.m.  The final agenda was posted 9 

at 10:19 a.m. on the OSDH website on October 7, 2013, and at 10:01 .m. at the building entrance on October 7, 10 

2013.
 

11 

 12 

ROLL CALL 13 

Members in Attendance:  R. Murali Krishna, M.D., President; Ronald Woodson, M.D., Vice-President; Martha 14 

Burger, M.B.A., Secretary-Treasurer; Terry Gerard, D.O.; Charles W. Grim, D.D.S.; Timothy E. Starkey, M.B.A.; 15 

Robert S. Stewart, M.D.; Cris Hart-Wolfe. 16 

Absent: Jenny Alexopulos, D.O. 17 

 18 

Central Staff Present: Terry Cline, Commissioner; Julie Cox-Kain, Chief Operating Officer; Henry F. Hartsell, 19 

Deputy Commissioner, Protective Health Services; Steve Ronck, Deputy Commissioner, Community and Family 20 

Health Services; Toni Frioux, Deputy Commissioner, Prevention and Preparedness Services; Mark Newman, 21 

Director of Office of State and Federal Policy; Don Maisch, Office of General Counsel; Lloyd Smith, Director of 22 

Internal Audit and Office of Accountability Systems; Pamela Williams, Office of Communications; VaLauna 23 

Grissom, Secretary to the State Board of Health; Commissioner’s Office; Felesha Scanlan. 24 

 25 

Visitors in attendance:  (see sign in sheet) 26 

 27 

Call to Order and Opening Remarks 28 

Dr. Krishna called the meeting to order.  He welcomed special guests in attendance.   29 

    30 

PROPOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION  31 

Ms. Burger moved Board approval to go in to Executive Session at 11:37 AM pursuant to 25 32 

O.S. Section 307(B)(4) for confidential communications to discuss pending department litigation, 33 

investigation, claim, or action; pursuant to 25 O.S. Section 307(B)(1) to discuss the employment, hiring, 34 

appointment, promotion, demotion, disciplining or resignation of any individual salaried public officer or 35 

employee and pursuant to 25 O.S. Section 307 (B)(7) for discussing any matter where disclosure of 36 

information would violate confidentiality requirements of state or federal law. 37 

 Complaints and Grievances concerning OSDH Reclassification Program 38 

 Review of proposed forms for physicians as required by state statute 39 

Second Ms. Wolfe. Motion carried. 40 

 41 

 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 42 

 ABSENT: Alexopulos 43 

 44 

Ms. Wolfe moved Board approval to move out of Executive Session.  Second Mr. Starkey.   Motion carried. 45 

  46 

 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 47 

 ABSENT: Alexopulos  48 

 49 

Dr. Stewart moved Board approval to adopt proposed forms for physicians as required by state statute 50 

with below modifications: 51 

 52 



DRAFT 
OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 

2 

 

No change to the Parental Consent Form; Physician Medical Emergency Affidavit Form should replace 1 

the word reviewed for the word examined and should add the word attending on the physician signature 2 

line. (see attachments A-B) 3 

 4 

 AYE: Burger, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 5 

 ABSENT: Alexopulos  6 

 ABSTAIN: Gerard 7 

  8 

ADJOURNMENT 9 

Mr. Grim moved Board approval to Adjourn. Second Dr. Stewart.  Motion carried. 10 

  11 

 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 12 

 ABSENT: Alexopulos 13 

 14 

The meeting adjourned at 12:53 p.m. 15 

 16 

Approved 17 

 18 

____________________ 19 

R. Murali Krishna, M.D. 20 

President, Oklahoma State Board of Health 21 

December 10, 2013  22 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 
 
 

Oklahoma State Board of Health (OSBH) 1 
Oklahoma City-County Board of Health (OCCBH) 2 

Tulsa City-County Board of Health (TCCBH) 3 
Tuesday, October 8, 2013, 1:00 p.m. 4 

 5 
Northeast Regional Health and Wellness Campus 6 

2600 NE 63rd Street, Board Room 100 7 
Oklahoma City, OK 73111 8 

 9 
Tuesday, October 8, 2013 1:00 p.m. 10 

 11 
R. Murali Krishna, President of the Oklahoma State Board of Health, called the 384th regular meeting of the 12 
Oklahoma State Board of Health to order on Tuesday, October 8, 2013 at 1:00 p.m.  The final agenda was 13 
posted at 10:19 a.m. on the OSDH website on October 7, 2013, and at 10:01 .m. at the building entrance on 14 
October 7, 2013. 15 
 16 
ROLL CALL 17 
Members in Attendance:  R. Murali Krishna, M.D., President; Ronald Woodson, M.D., Vice-President; Martha 18 
Burger, M.B.A., Secretary-Treasurer; Terry Gerard, D.O.; Charles W. Grim, D.D.S.; Timothy E. Starkey, 19 
M.B.A.; Robert S. Stewart, M.D.; Cris Hart-Wolfe. 20 
Absent: Jenny Alexopulos, D.O. 21 
 22 
Central Staff Present: Terry Cline, Commissioner; Julie Cox-Kain, Chief Operating Officer; Henry F. Hartsell, 23 
Deputy Commissioner, Protective Health Services; Steve Ronck, Deputy Commissioner, Community and 24 
Family Health Services; Toni Frioux, Deputy Commissioner, Prevention and Preparedness Services; Mark 25 
Newman, Director of Office of State and Federal Policy; Don Maisch, Office of General Counsel; Lloyd Smith, 26 
Director of Internal Audit and Office of Accountability Systems; Pamela Williams, Office of Communications; 27 
VaLauna Grissom, Secretary to the State Board of Health; Commissioner’s Office; Felesha Scanlan. 28 
 29 
OCCBH Members in Attendance: Dr. Cagle, Dr. Gray, Dr. Hill, Dr. Mills, Dr. Raskob, Dr. Salmeron  30 
 31 
TCCBH Members in Attendance: Dr. Patrick Grogan, Dr. Geraldine Ellison, Ms. Nancy Keithline  32 
  33 
Visitors in attendance:  (see sign in sheet) 34 
 35 
Call to Order and Opening Remarks 36 
Dr. Cagle welcomed the visitors to the OCCHD Northeast Regional Health and Wellness Campus.   37 
Dr. Krishna thanked Gary Cox and the OCCHD Board of Health for hosting the 2013 Tri-Board of Health 38 
meeting.   39 
 40 
REVIEW OF MINUTES – OCCBH 41 
Dr. Cagle called for approval of minutes of the OCCBH September Board meeting as presented.     42 
 43 
Dr. Salmeron moved Board approval of the minutes of the September Board meeting.  Second Dr. Gray  44 
 AYE: Dr. Cagle, Dr. Gray, Dr. Hill, Dr. Mills, Dr. Raskob, Dr. Salmeron  45 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the September meeting were approved.   1 
 2 
REVIEW OF MINUTES – OSBH  3 
Dr. Krishna directed attention to the minutes of the July 9, 2013 regular meeting and the August 16-18, 2013 4 
Annual Board of Health Retreat for review and approval.  5 
 6 
Dr. Gerard moved Board approval of the July 9, 2013 meeting minutes as presented. Second Ms. Wolfe.   7 
Motion carried. 8 
 9 
 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 10 
 ABSENT: Alexopulos 11 
 12 
Dr. Gerard moved Board approval of the August 16-18, 2013 meeting minutes as presented. Second Dr. 13 
Grim.   Motion carried. 14 
 15 
 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 16 
 ABSENT: Alexopulos 17 
 18 
OKLAHOMA HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PLAN (OHIP) 19 
Gary Cox, Ph.D., Oklahoma City-County Health Department local perspectives.  20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

3 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
Local Perspectives; Bruce Dart, Ph.D., Tulsa Health Department local perspectives 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

4 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

5 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
The presentation concluded. 16 
 17 
State Perspectives; Terry Cline, Ph.D., Commissioner of Health state perspective 18 

 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

6 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

7 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
The presentation concluded. 14 
 15 
LEGISLATIVE REPORT 16 
Mark Newman (OSDH), Tammie Kilpatrick (OCCHD), Scott Adkins (THD) Tammie Kilpatrick indicated 17 
the 2014 agenda will focus on prohibiting the sale of e-cigarettes to minors, requiring multi-unit housing 18 
smoking disclosure for prospective renters, and providing a tax credit for the construction of residential 19 
storm shelters or safe-rooms.   20 
 21 
Dr. Cagle requested a motion from the OCCHD Board to support the OHIP Legislative Agenda.  Motion 22 
made by Dr. Hill for the OCCHD to support the OHIP Legislative Agenda for FY ’14 as stated in the 23 
legislative report.  Motion seconded by Dr. Gray.  Vote taken:  Dr. Cagle, Dr. Gray, Dr. Hill, Dr. Mills, 24 
Dr. Raskob and Dr. Salmeron, Aye.  Motion carried.     25 
 26 
Dr. Gerard moved Board approval in support of the 2014 OHIP Legislative Agenda as presented. 27 
Second Dr. Grim.   Motion carried. 28 
 29 
 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson, Wolfe 30 
      ABSENT: Alexopulos 31 
 32 
BUDGET PRIORITIES 33 
Julie Cox-Kain (OSDH), Bob Jamison (OCCHD), Reggie Ivey (THD) presented successes and updates 34 
regarding the previous year’s joint budget request.  The three health departments updated the Boards on 35 
their efforts around Children’s Health including budgetary updates, evidence-based strategies, and 36 
community-based projects.  37 
 38 
THD will continue to expand the REACH (Raising Educational Awareness for Community Health) 39 
Program and the Maternal and Child Health Case Management services in Tulsa County.  The program 40 
will identify high risk clients, both during pregnancy and after.   41 
 42 
OCCHD will continue to work on the Maternal and Child Health Outreach Program which will conduct 43 
outreach and educational activities to facilitate the reduction of infant mortality in the Oklahoma City 44 
metropolitan area.   45 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

9 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

10 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 

 5 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

11 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 

 5 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

12 
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 

 4 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

13 
 
 
 
 
 

The presentation concluded. 1 
 2 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT – OCCBH 3 
Dr. Cagle highlighted a recent visit from Taiwan health delegates regarding the Public Health 4 
Accreditation process and their interest in the health improvement planning efforts.  Dr. Cagle thanked 5 
Blue Cross Blue Shield, the Oklahoma Department of Tourism, and Integris for their recent donations to 6 
further the trails and sports fields at the Northeast Regional Health and Wellness campus.   7 
  8 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT – TCCBH 9 
Dr. Grogan thanked OCCHD for their hospitality.  Dr. Grogan thanked the THD staff for the engagement 10 
of the Tulsa community.  He briefly addressed successful and productive meetings with community 11 
leaders regarding such issues as water safety.  It is important to engage and educate both community 12 
leaders and members of the public around these issues as well as strategic planning.  He mentioned that 13 
THD staff have become certified education counselors for the ACA. 14 
 15 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT – OSBH 16 
Discussion and possible action  17 
Proposed 2014 Board of Health Meeting Dates (second Tuesday of each month at 11:00 a.m.): 18 
January 14, 2014  19 
February 11, 2014  20 
March 11, 2014  21 
April 8, 2014   22 
May 13, 2014  23 
June 10, 2014  24 
July 8, 2014  25 
August 15-17, 2014 (Location TBD) 26 
October 14, 2014 - Tri-Board (Tulsa Health Department North Regional Health and Wellness Center 1:00 27 
p.m.)  28 
December 9, 2014 29 
 30 
Dr. Grim moved Board approval of the 2014 Board of Health meeting dates as presented. Second Mr. 31 
Starkey.   Motion carried. 32 
 33 
 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson  34 
 ABSENT: Alexopulos, Wolfe 35 
  36 
Dr. Krishna briefly discussed the state of the state’s health and the successes accomplished throughout the 37 
state.  However; obesity, tobacco and mental health need to be addressed at the national level in order to 38 
see continued improvement.  He thanked the staff and personnel working in public for their contributions.   39 
     40 
NEW BUSINESS 41 
No new business. 42 

 43 
ADJOURNMENT 44 
Mr. Gerard moved State Board of Health approval to Adjourn. Second Dr. Woodson.  Motion carried. 45 



 
DRAFT 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH MINUTES                              October 8, 2013 
 
 
 
 

14 
 
 
 
 
 

 AYE: Burger, Gerard, Grim, Krishna, Starkey, Stewart, Woodson  1 
 ABSENT: Alexopulos, Wolfe 2 
 3 
The OSDH adjourned at 12:53 p.m. 4 
 5 
Tulsa City-County Board of Health adjourned at 12:53 p.m. 6 
 7 
Approved 8 
 9 
____________________ 10 
R. Murali Krishna, M.D. 11 
President, Oklahoma State Board of Health 12 
December 10, 2013  13 

















 

December 10, 2013 Page 1 
 

 
2014 LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES  

 
Mark Newman, Ph.D., Director, Office of State and Federal Policy 

 
 

1. Prohibit the sale of e-cigarettes to minors 

• Oklahoma state law is currently silent on the sale of e-cigarettes to minors 

• Research shows that e-cigarette use more than doubled in U.S middle and high school 
students from 2011 to 2012 

• In 2012, more than 1.78 million middle and high school students nationwide 
experimented with e-cigarettes 

• Three-quarters of those who tried e-cigarettes also tried combustible tobacco products 

• E-cigarette/vapor products contain carcinogens and nicotine, which is toxic and highly 
addictive 

• Youth should not have access to e-cigarette or vapor products because nicotine can negatively 
affect the developing brain 

• Among e-cigarette/vapor products the concentration of chemical contaminants and nicotine 
has been shown to vary greatly.  This means these unregulated products may provide 
uncontrolled doses of harmful contaminants 

• Some studies suggest that as many as a quarter of smokers surveyed began using e- cigarettes 
or vapor products prior to switching to tobacco products. The variety of flavors, misleading 
claims, and marketing that encourages use indoors increases concerns that these products may 
be used as a gateway to cigarettes or other lit tobacco products for some people, and may keep 
smoking rates unacceptably high 

Policy Proposal 

• State law already prohibits the sale of tobacco products to minors 

• Legislation is needed to amend the definition of “tobacco product” to clarify that it includes 
any product that is made or derived from tobacco. This would include e- cigarettes 

• This definition is consistent with current court rulings and FDA intent to regulate e-cigarettes 
as “other tobacco products” 

2. Require multi-unit housing smoking disclosure for prospective renters 
 
• Many children with asthma and other chronic conditions affected by secondhand smoke 

exposure are unwillingly exposed when living in multi-unit housing 

• When smoking is allowed in one area of a building, smoke can and will spread to other areas 
within the building 

• There is no safe level of exposure to secondhand smoke 



December 10, 2013 Page 2 
 

• There are more than 7,000 chemicals that have been identified in secondhand smoke, at least 
250 of those are known to be harmful such as hydrogen cyanide, carbon monoxide and 
ammonia 

• Approximately 212,782 Oklahoma households live in multi-unit housing (2 or more) 

• Approximately 15% of Oklahoma housing units are multi-unit structures (2 or more) 

• Among Oklahoma children ages birth to 14, there were 3,258 in-patient hospital days for 
asthma in 2010 with total charges of approximately $13,219,494 
 

• A 30% reduction in hospitalizations for asthma among young adults would save approximately 
$611,800 per year 

Policy Proposal 

• State law already requires disclosure for potential toxins that can result when 
methamphetamine has been found to be manufactured in one unit of a multi-unit 
housing complex 

• Legislation is needed to amend the disclosure statute to also include whether smoking is 
permitted on the property and locations in which it is permitted 

3. Provide a tax credit for the construction of residential storm shelters or safe-rooms 
 
• The events of this past spring (2013) have reminded us that even with the advanced warning 

and storm prediction systems in our state, tornadoes can strike suddenly and unpredictably 

• In extremely violent EF4 and EF5 storms, the only protection from a direct hit is in a basement 
or tornado shelter.  Few homes in Oklahoma have been built with basements, but, there are 
many options for the installing a storm shelter in a home 

• There is a safe room rebate program through the Oklahoma Department of Emergency 
Management (SoonerSafe) and it is estimated that more than 11,000 shelters have been built 
through this program following the May 1999 tornadoes 

• Applicants are selected randomly and can receive up to $2,000 rebate after installing a safe 
room.  The rebate is not taxable. However, individuals are not eligible to receive a rebate 
through this program if they have already built a safe room and must wait until they see if they 
qualify for the rebate before they can build 

• The Oklahoma Constitution provides for up to one hundred square feet of a Safe room 
installed after January 1, 2002 shall be exempt from taxation 

• There are currently no tax credits in place to further incentivize building a tornado shelter 

Policy Proposal 

• This bill would create a one-time tax credit to individuals and families for the construction of a 
residential above or below ground storm shelter 

• Recommend that this tax credit only apply to families using an Oklahoma company to 
construct or install their storm shelter or safe-room and Oklahoma manufactured safe rooms 
and storm shelters 

• Recommend that the tax credit be in existence for a defined time period of two or three years 
and not be indefinite 













































































































































































































































































 
 
 

OKLAHOMA STATE BOARD OF HEALTH 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORT 

 
Terry Cline, Ph.D., Commissioner 

December 10, 2013 
 
PUBLIC RELATIONS/COMMUNICATIONS 
 
“Talk to your doctor” Press Conference, Tobacco Settlement Endowment Trust – attended 
Oklahoma Watch Town Hall - panel member 
National Safety Council – speaker 
Focus PA Medicine – speaker 
Administrative Rules Seminar – speaker 
Tyler Media Public Service Announcements 
Champions of Health – speaker 
KTOK Radio Interview 
Oklahoma Food Security Summit – speaker 
Department of Human Services Awards Ceremony – speaker 
American Public Health Annual Conference – speaker 
Oklahoma City Leadership Class 32 – speaker 
Tulsa County Medical Society Annual Meeting – speaker 
College of Public Health, Public Health Policy class - speaker 
 
 
SITE VISITS 
 
Kingfisher County Health Department 
Logan County Health Department 
Pottawatomie County Health Department 
Seminole County Health Department 
Gateway to Recovery, Shawnee  
Women, Infants and Children (WIC) office  
 
 
STATE/FEDERAL AGENCIES/OFFICIALS 
 
Chris Bruehl, Director of Appointments, Governor Fallin 
Governor Fallin’s Cabinet Meeting   
Preston Doerflinger, Secretary of Finance, Administration and Information Technology 
Tracey Strader, Executive Director, TSET  
Institute of Medicine Annual Conference 
Million Hearts Core Team Meeting 
Department of Tourism Movie Premier “Osage Autumn; Osage County” 
OMES Budget Hearing 
Nico Gomez, Executive Director, Oklahoma Health Care Authority 
Terri White, Commissioner, OK Dept. of Mental Health & Substance Abuse Svs. 
Gaylord Z. Thomas, Executive Director, OSBELTCA 
 



 
 
OTHERS: 
 
Gary Cox, Executive Director, Oklahoma City County Health Department 
Bruce Dart, Executive Director, Tulsa Health Department  
Reforming States Group Regional Meeting 
Safe Communities American Luncheon  
OHIP Full Team Meeting 
Jonathan Small, Oklahoma Council of Public Affairs 
Public-Private Partnership Meeting-OHIP workgroup 
Oklahoma Turning Point Council Meeting 
Opioid Prescribing Guidelines Workgroup 
Drug Overdose Committee 
Lyle Kelsey, Executive Director, Oklahoma State Board of Medical Association  
Ted Haynes, CEO and Dr. Joseph Cummingham, Medical Director, Blue Cross Blue Shield 
Monica Basu and Ken Leavitt, George Kaiser Family Foundation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	FinalAgenda 12.10.13
	FinalAgenda 12.10.13

	DraftMinutesSpecial 10.8.13
	DraftMinutes TriBoard 10.8.13
	DraftMinutesSpecial 10.8.13

	Home Care and Hospice Advisory Council
	Advancement of Wellness Advisory Council
	Infant and Childrens Health Advisory Council
	2014 PROPOSED LEGISLATION Mark Presentation BOH
	Chapter 2
	Chapter 100
	Chapter 276
	Chapter 658
	Chapter 675
	Chapter 515
	Chapter 550
	Chapter 667
	Chapter 526
	Chapter 531
	Commissioner Rept 12-10-13
	FinalAgenda 12.10.13.pdf
	FinalAgenda 12.10.13


